
CITY OF ARMADALE 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

OF CITY STRATEGY COMMITTEE TO BE HELD IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM, 
ADMINISTRATION CENTRE, 7 ORCHARD AVENUE, ARMADALE ON TUESDAY, 
14 JANUARY 2003, AT 7.00 PM. 

 
 

Meal to be served at 6.15 pm 
 
 
PRESENT:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APOLOGIES:  Cr J A Stewart  Leave of absence 
    Mr R S Tame  Annual leave 
     
 
 
 
OBSERVERS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN ATTENDANCE:   
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DISCLAIMER 
 
The Disclaimer for protecting Councillors and staff from liability of information and advice 
given at Committee meetings to be read by the Chairman.  
 
 
 
DECLARATION OF MEMBERS’ INTERESTS 
 
 
 
 
QUESTION TIME 
 
 
 
 
DEPUTATION 
 
Nil 
 
 
CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 
 

 
RESOLVED 

 
Minutes of the City Strategy Committee Meeting held on 10 December 
2002, be confirmed. 

 
ITEMS REFERRED FROM INFORMATION BULLETIN 
 

INFORMATION BULLETIN – ISSUE NO.1/2003. 
 

The following items were included for information in the “City Strategy section” 
? Progress Report on Contingency, Operational and Strategic Projects 
? Report on Outstanding Matters  
 
If any of the items listed above requires clarification or a report for a decision of 
Council, this item to raised for discussion at this juncture. 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 

CITY STRATEGY COMMITTEE 
 

14 JANUARY 2003 
 

 
 

I N D E X 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
CITY SUPPORT FOR CINEMAS -  TENDER 19/01..........................................................................................14 
 
COLE’S SHAFT – REQUEST TO ACCEPT MANAGEMENT ORDER OVER RESERVE .......................5 
 
STATE ELECTORAL BOUNDARIES REVIEW ................................................................................................11 
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COLE’S SHAFT – REQUEST TO ACCEPT MANAGEMENT ORDER OVER RESERVE 
 
WARD : ARMADALE 

 
FILE REF : A234213 

 
DATE : 23 December 2002 

 
REF : HC 

 
RESPONSIBLE 
MANAGER 
 

: PSM 

APPLICANT 
 

: Department of Land 
Administration 

LAND OWNER 
 

: Crown 

SUBJECT LAND : 
 

Reserve 46948 
Property size 3134m² 
Map 23.01 

ZONING 
MRS/TPS No.2 
 

:  
Urban/Res R5 

In Brief:- 
? Department of Land Administration 

(DOLA) has purchased the lot 
containing Cole’s Shaft and created a 
“Historic Site” reserve. 

? DOLA requests Council to undertake the 
management of the Reserve under a 
Management Order. 

? Recommend that Council accept the 
Management Order subject to the 
installation of a safety grate by DOLA. 

? Council to consider planning for the 
reserve in the preparation of future Five 
Year Plans. 

 
Tabled Items 
 
Nil. 
 
Officer Interest Declaration 
 
Nil. 
 
Strategic Implications  
 
Relates to our commitment to the future to create a caring and vibrant City, rich in history, 
heritage and lifestyle. 
 
Legislation Implications  
 
Land Administration Act 1997. 
Transfer of Land Act 1893 as amended. 
Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990. 
 
Council Policy / Local Law Implications  
 
Nil. 
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COLE’S MINE SHAFT 
 

 
 
 

 
 

View from top of Coles Shaft 

Associated Mullock Heap 
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Budget / Financial Implications  
 
Maintenance costs of about $5,000 per annum for fire control, monthly inspection and minor 
maintenance.  Further development can be considered in future Five Year Plans. 
Department of Land Administration (DOLA) will undertake supply of a safety grate at its own 
cost. 
 
 
Consultation 
 
DOLA 
EDTS 
Council’s Insurers (Municipal Liability Scheme). 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At its meeting of 23 April 2001, Council resolved amongst other things to include the mine site 
known as Cole’s Shaft, with associated mullock heap, in Council’s Municipal Heritage 
Inventory.   
 
The shaft lay on the boundary of lots 53 and 54 Summit View, Armadale.  A recent subdivision 
has amended boundaries so the shaft is wholly included in new lot 67.  This lot has been 
purchased by DOLA and created as Reserve 46948 – Historic Site. 
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
 
DOLA requests that Council agree to undertake the management of the Reserve by accepting a 
Management Order.  A draft Management Order has been forwarded for consideration and the 
conditions outlined are: 
 

To be utilised for the designated purpose of “Historic Site” only. 
 

1. This land must be cared for, controlled and managed in a manner that aims to: 
i. take into account and to conserve the recreational, historic and cultural 

heritage value and significance of the land; and 
ii. take into account and compliment the character and amenity of the 

surrounding land. 
 

2. No construction or development of any kind, including but not limited to the 
development and/or construction of buildings, structures or other facilities 
may be carried out on this land without the prior approval of the Minister for 
Lands. 

 
3. Any construction or development of this land should take into account, and should 

aim: 
 

i. to conserve the recreational, historic, and cultural heritage value and 
significance of this land 

ii. to complement the character and amenity of the surrounding land. 
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DOLA, in association with the Department of Conservation and Land Management, is arranging 
for the installation of a removable grate over the shaft at its cost.  Once the draft design of the 
grate is prepared, DOLA will consult with both Council’s Technical Services Directorate and 
the Heritage Council of Western Australia prior to installation.  The grate will assist with safety 
and protection aspects at the, currently, open shaft. 
 
COMMENT 
 
Technical Services Directorate Comments 
 
The Executive Director Technical Services supports acceptance of the Management Order.  It 
is suggested that for the first several years there will be minimal costs associated with its 
upkeep.  Initially these would be fire management and weed control issues which would be 
accommodated within the general Parks and Recreation Operating budget.  A final cost of 
development has not been identified at this stage. 
 
Further development of the site within the terms of the Management Order would be the 
subject of research and proposed within future Five Year Planning reviews.  The site is not 
intended for, or likely to undergo, heavy or frequent usage but would be more of interest for 
low impact and infrequent geological study or educational research. 
 
Acceptance of the Management Order should be upon the proviso, as agreed by DOLA, that a 
suitable safety grate be installed at DOLA’s expense over the mouth of the mineshaft to 
provide safety and protection. 
 
Analysis 
 
Cole’s Shaft marks the beginnings of mineral exploration and the commencement of the 
mining industry in WA.  The retention and promotion of the site is important in giving a 
physical dimension to Armadale’s place in the State’s history.  The Heritage Council of WA 
commissioned a Geological Survey of the mine as part of its consideration on whether it 
should be included in the State Register of Heritage Places.   
 
DOLA has purchased the site and created a reserve to preserve the historic and heritage 
value, indicating the State Government’s interest, and Council is offered the opportunity to 
oversee and manage this important part of the State’s history. 
 
The site has remained for many years with minimal maintenance and, with the safety grill 
soon to be in place, this can continue for the time being.  Further consideration can be given 
to appropriate development of the site and a specific budgeting framework in the future.  The 
mine site is not visible from the road and is in a quiet, hilly area so it is not envisaged that 
there will be a great many tourist type visitors.  The road layout and gradient make it 
unsuitable for buses to visit.  Any visitors by car will be able to park on the sealed access. 
 
Council’s liability insurer has visited the site and indicates that, with the safety grill in place, 
acceptance of the Management Order by Council will not have an adverse effect on the 
insurance cover. 
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Options  
 
Council appears to have three options 
 

1. Refuse to accept the Management of the Reserve. 
 

2. Accept the management of the reserve under the conditions in the draft Management 
Order. 

 
3. Accept the management of the reserve upon a variation of the conditions of the draft 

Management Order. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The mine is an important part of WA’s history and has been purchased by DOLA to preserve 
that heritage importance.  The conditions outlined in the draft Management Order appear 
reasonable to preserve the value and significance of the site and the amenity of the surrounding 
low density residential area. It is recommended that Council accept the management of the 
reserve upon the proviso that a suitable safety grate be installed at DOLA’s expense over the 
mouth of the mineshaft. 
 
 
 RECOMMEND 
 
 1. That Council accept management of Reserve 46948, containing 

Cole’s Shaft, under the conditions outlined in the draft 
Management Order, once a suitable safety grill is fitted at the 
expense of the Department of Land Administration to the 
satisfaction of the Executive Director Technical Services and that 
the Department of Land Administration be advised accordingly. 

 
 2. That appropriate development of the site in accordance with the 

conditions of the Management Order be undertaken for inclusion in 
future Five Year Planning. 

 
 
Moved Cr _______________ 
Carried/Lost ( ) 
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STATE ELECTORAL BOUNDARIES REVIEW 
 
WARD : ALL 
FILE REF : ELT/1 

DATE : 7 January 2003 

REF : AFM 

RESPONSIBLE 
MANAGER 

: EDCS 

In Brief:- 
? This report seeks: 

a) to inform Council of the State Government’s 
review of State Electoral Boundaries and 
Electorate names and  

b) Council’s intentions on whether it wishes to 
make a submission to the review process. 

 
 
Tabled Items 
Nil 
 
Officer Interest Declaration 
Nil 
 
Strategic Implications  
? To achieve a better quality of life for the people of our City. 
 
Legislation Implications  
Nil 
 
Council Policy / Local Law Implications  
Nil 
 
Budget / Financial Implications  
 
Nil unless the option as reported of retaining professional services is favoured in which case the 
cost of approx. $2,500 can be accommodated from the current year’s budget. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The following extracts from correspondence received on 19 December 2002 from the WA 
Electoral Commission explains: 
 

“The Western Australian Electoral Distribution Commissioners have announced that 
an electoral distribution will be carried out shortly to determine the electorates for 
the next State General Election.  The six-month process will commence on 5 February 
2003, with the final boundaries being determined on 4 August 2003.  
 
The Commissioners are required to create electorates in which the number of electors 
is within plus or minus 15% of the quotient.  The quotient for the metropolitan area is 
26,454 electors and the quotient for the country areas is 13,735 electors.  In 
determining where to place the electoral boundaries the Commissioners are required 
to consider a number of factors such as: 
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? Community of interest 
? Means of communication and distance from the capital 
? Physical features 
? Existing boundaries of regions and districts 
? Existing local government boundaries 
? The trend of demographic change. 

 
Should you decide to make a written suggestion as to how the State electoral 
boundaries should be drawn or for the naming of the electorate, an information kit to 
assist in the preparation of written suggestions will be available in the new year on 
the Electoral Distribution website:  www.boundarieswa.com.  The information kit will 
also be available, on request, in hardcopy and CD format.” 
 

With regard to the Information Kit mentioned, presented as an attachment are copy extracts 
from the kit (selected pages only to provide an initial insight).  (Refer to Attachment “A-1” 
– Summary of Attachments – buff page.)  Included in this attachment is a timetable 
indicating that the submission period close date is Friday, 7 March 2003. 

 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 

 
The purpose of this report is essentially threefold, i.e. 

 
- to inform Council of the review; 
 
- to ascertain whether Council does or does not wish to make a submission and if it 

does; then 
 
- to seek initial suggestions/directions from Council as to a process for preparing a 

submission. 
 
COMMENTS 
 
Should Council wish to make a submission then the suggested options for Committee’s 
consideration/discussion could be: 
 
- to forward to Councillors the Information Kit, seeking their views and based on that 

input, officers develop a recommendation to the February 2003 City Strategy 
Committee reflecting the consensus of views received; 

 
- to establish an informal working group of say 4 or 5 Councillors to workshop a 

submission response for Council’s consideration; 
 
- appoint an external consultant to assist Council in preparing its submission. 
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RECOMMEND 
 
That Council: 
 
a. does OR does not wish to make a submission re: the review of 

State Electoral Boundaries and/or the naming of electorates; and 
 
b. if Council does wish to make a submission, then: 
 

- the views of Councillors be sought and referred to the 
February 2003 City Strategy Committee  Meeting to 
determine/formulate a submission response. 

 
Moved Cr  
MOTION CARRIED/LOST (   ) 
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LATE ITEM 
CITY SUPPORT FOR CINEMAS -  TENDER 19/01 
 
WARD : ARMADALE 

 
FILE REF : PSC / 37 

TEN/19/01 
DATE : 10 Jan 03 

 
REF : GC/IM 

 
RESPONSIBLE 
MANAGER 

: CEO 

In Brief:- 
? Council was advised at its meeting on 21 October 2002 

that negotiations with Reading had been effectively 
terminated and negotiations commenced with the next 
preferred Tenderer, Grand Cinemas. 

? Grand cinemas reviewed their original tender and 
submitted a modified proposal which was considered 
by the Cinema Working Party on 10 Dec 02. 

? The proposal includes a 4-screen cinema configuration 
with a full range of ancillary commercial tenanc ies. 

? Council at its meeting on 16 December 2002 approved 
a variation to Tender 19/01 to entertain a 4 screen 
cinema complex, with capacity to expand to a 6 to 8 
screen cinema complex. 

? Grand have now submitted a variation to its tender 
based on 4 screens which is to be considered by the 
Cinema Working Group on Monday, 13th January 2003 
prior to a report to City Strategy Committee and 
Council. 

 
 
Officer Interest Declaration 
Nil 
 
Strategic Implications  
Regional Centre and provision of recreational services 
 
Legislative Implications  
Local Government Act 1995 … s3.1, s3.18(2), s3.18(3), s3.57 
 
Council Policy / Local Law Implications  
N/A 

 
Budget / Financial Implications  
 
The estimated potential cost to Council of providing assistance was noted in Council’s 18th 
June 2000 minutes and this was updated in September 2002 reported via City Strategy. 
 
Consultation 
? ARA, 
? Grand Cinemas 
? Cinema Working Group 
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Background 

 
At the Council meeting on 21st October it was advised that negotiations with Reading had not 
been able to achieve a satisfactory outcome within Tender expectations or Council’s set 
parameters. Accordingly, negotiations had commenced with the next preferred tenderer, 
Grand Cinemas. 
 
Grand Cinemas had agreed to review their original tender to assess their capacity to progress 
within Council’s parameters. A revised proposal from Grand was considered by Council at its 
meeting on 16th December where it was agreed to approve a variation to Tender 19/01 to 
entertain a 4 screen cinema complex, with capacity to expand to a 6 to 8 screen cinema 
complex. 
 
 
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORTS 
 
The Cinema Working Party will be meeting on Monday 13th January 2003 to discuss the  
revised Grand Theatre Co. tender and a report on the outcome of the discussions will be 
submitted as a late item for Committee consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
CITY STRATEGY COMMITTEE 

 
SUMMARY OF “A” ATTACHMENTS 

 
14 JANUARY 2003 

 
Attachment 

No. 
Subject Page 

 
A-1 

 
State Electoral Boundaries Review 
Extracts from the WAEC Information Kit 
 

 
17 - 29 
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